
San Fernando Valley 1 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Agenda - Thursday March 14, 2013 

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
A Joint Powers Authority 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, March 14, 2013 – 10:00 a.m. 

Valley Municipal Building 14410 Sylvan Street, 2nd Floor Van Nuys, California 91401 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERS 

Chair:  Councilmember Ara Najarian, City of Glendale 
Vice-Chair: Councilmember Dennis Zine, 3rd District, City of Los Angeles 

Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, 3rd Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 
Supervisor Mike Antonovich, 5th Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Jess Talamantes, City of Burbank 
Councilmember Paul Krekorian, 2nd District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Tom LaBonge, 4th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Paul Koretz, 5th District, City of Los Angeles 

Vacant, 6th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Richard Alarcón, 7th District, City of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Mitchell Englander, 12th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Jesse H. Avila, City of San Fernando 
Councilmember Marsha McLean, City of Santa Clarita 

STAFF 
SFVCOG Treasurer:  Mark J. Saladino, Treasurer, County of Los Angeles 

SFVCOG Secretary:  Robert L. Scott 
Robert L. Scott, Executive Director, San Fernando Valley COG 

Jill Jones, Deputy County Counsel, County of Los Angeles 
Arletta Maria Brimsey, Deputy City Attorney, City of Los Angeles 

 

CALL TO ORDER — San Fernando Valley Council of Governments (SFVCOG) 

1. CALL TO ORDER — Ara Najarian, Chair 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and may be enacted 
by one motion.  Prior to the motion to consider any action by the Board, any public comments 
on any of the Consent Calendar items will be heard. There will be no separate action unless 
members of the Board request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar. 

5. MINUTES  — Review January 10, 2013 Board of Directors Minutes.  
Attachment 5: Draft Minutes for January 10, 2013 Board of Directors Meeting 

Requested Action: Approve Minutes 

Bates #001



San Fernando Valley 2 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Agenda - Thursday March 14, 2013 

REGULAR CALENDAR  

The Board of Directors may take action on the following items 

6.  AMENDMENT OF MINUTES — Amend the minutes of July 12, 2012 to delete the 
reference in Item 6 "…Approval of core Annual Budget 'Budget A' was approved"  
Attachment 6a: Minutes of July 12, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting 

Attachment 6b: Budget B Adopted at July 12, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting 

Requested Action: Amend Minutes of July 12, 2012 

FINANCE AND BUDGET 

7.  FINANCIAL REPORT  — Treasurer, Rachelle Anema, County Auditor-Controller 
Requested Action: Note and File 

Handout 7: Financial Report 

8.  CHAIR'S REPORT — Ara Najarian, Chairman of the Board: Updates, remarks and 
recommendations 

9.  VOTING POLICY - (Continued from July 12, 2012) Initiate a process to amend the 
Joint Powers Agreement of the SFV COG to change the voting requirements  
Attachment 9a: Staff Report,  

Attachment 9b: COG Comparisons in the Region 

Attachment 9c: Joint Powers Agreement of the San Fernando Valley COG 

Requested Action: Instruct the Executive Director to circulate a 
proposed amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement to members 

10. CONTRACTING, PROCUREMENT POLICY, FISCAL MANUAL - Revision 
Attachment 10: Current Fiscal Manual Adopted October 13, 2011 

Requested Action: Treasurer and Counsel, in consultation with the 
Executive Director, to propose revisions to the Fiscal Policy Manual 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT — Robert L. Scott  
Report on status of activities, developments and correspondence  
|Attachment 11a: Summary Activity Profile - Draft 

Attachment 11b: Response to Report and Motion of Fiscal Committee 

Attachment 11c: Proposed Substitute Directive re: Policies 

12. METRO ROUND 3, "TRANSIT-ORIENTED DISTRICT" Planning Grant 
Report on selection process and outcome 
Attachment 12: Metro Planning Committee Report 

Requested Action: Note and File 
 

Bates #002



San Fernando Valley 3 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Agenda - Thursday March 14, 2013 

13. METRO Subregional Transportation Needs Assessment and Strategy 

Requested Action: Approve collaboration with Metro on Subregional Transportation 

Needs Assessment and Strategy - Authorize the Executive Director to pursue 
additional leads for grants with Metro and SCAG, with reports to the board. 

14. CLOSING 

15. ANNOUNCEMENT AND REQUESTS 

16. Members are invited to make announcements and suggest items for future agendas. 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Public Comments: At this time members of the public can address the San Fernando Valley Council 
of Governments Board of Directors (Board) regarding any items within the subject matter jurisdiction of 
the agency that are not separately listed on this agenda, subject to time restrictions, by filling out a 
Public Comment Card and submitting that card to the Secretary.  Members of the public will have an 
opportunity to speak on agendized items at the time the item is called for discussion.  No action may 
be taken on items not listed on the agenda unless authorized by law.  Whenever possible, lengthy 
testimony should be presented to the Board in writing and only pertinent points presented orally. 

Notices: 

Meetings of the San Fernando Valley Council of Governments are recorded and/or videotaped by LA 
CityView Channel 35 and are viewable at www.lacity.org  

A person with a disability may contact the San Fernando Valley Council of Governments at least 72 
hours before the scheduled meeting to request receipt of an agenda in an alternative format or to 
request disability-related accommodations, in order to participate in the public meeting, to the extent 
feasible. 

The entire agenda package and any meeting related writings or documents provided to a majority of 
the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda package, unless exempt from disclosure 
pursuant to California Law, are also available. Email at info@sfvcog.org or phone at 818-712-9500 for 
accommodation. 

Bates #003



 

San Fernando Valley 1 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY  
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

A Joint Powers Authority 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

Thursday, January 10, 2013 – 10:00 a.m. 
Valley Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

14410 Sylvan Street, 2nd Floor 
Van Nuys, California 91401 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEMBERS 
Chair:  Councilmember Ara Najarian, City of Glendale 

Vice-Chair: Councilmember Dennis Zine, 3rd District, City of Los Angeles 
 

Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, 3rd Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 
Supervisor Mike Antonovich, 5th Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Jess Talamantes, City of Burbank 
Councilmember Paul Krekorian, 2nd District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Tom LaBonge, 4th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Paul Koretz, 5th District, City of Los Angeles 

Vacant, 6th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Richard Alarcón, 7th District, City of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Mitchell Englander, 12th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Jesse Avila, City of San Fernando 

Councilmember Marsha McLean, City of Santa Clarita 
 

STAFF 
SFVCOG Treasurer:  Mark J. Saladino, Treasurer, County of Los Angeles 

SFVCOG Secretary:  Robert L. Scott 
Robert L. Scott, Executive Director, San Fernando Valley COG 

Jill Jones, Deputy County Counsel, County of Los Angeles 
Arletta Maria Brimsey, Deputy City Attorney, City of Los Angeles 

CALL TO ORDER — San Fernando Valley Council of Governments (SFVCOG) 
1. CALL TO ORDER — Ara Najarian, Chair 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Najarian at 10:20 a.m.  

2. ROLL CALL 
Quorum established (7 Members): Chair Councilmember Ara Najarian, 
Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, Jarrod DeGonia for Supervisor              
Michael D. Antonovich, Councilmember Jess Talamantes, Carolyn Ramsay 
for Councilmember Tom LaBonge, Councilmember Marsha McLean and 
Councilmember Jesse H. Avila. Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich and   
Phyllis Winger for Councilmember Mitchell Englander joined the meeting 
after roll call. 

Attachment 5 Bates #004



 

San Fernando Valley 2 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

Absent: Vice Chair Councilmember Dennis Zine, Councilmember            
Paul Krekorian, Councilmember Paul Koretz and Councilmember Richard 
Alarcon. 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Najarian introduced Councilmember Jesse H. Avila as the new 
member representing the City of San Fernando.  

The pledge of allegiance was led by Director Avila. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
At this time members of the public can address the San Fernando Valley Council 
of Governments Board of Directors (Board) regarding any items within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the agency that are not separately listed on this 
agenda, subject to time restrictions, by filling out a Public Comment Card and 
submitting that card to the Secretary.  Members of the public will have an 
opportunity to speak on agendized items at the time the item is called for 
discussion.  No action may be taken on items not listed on the agenda unless 
authorized by law.  Whenever possible, lengthy testimony should be presented to 
the Board in writing and only pertinent points presented orally. 

Peter McCarty, San Fernando Valley Green Team, reported that Boulder 
Electric is manufacturing vehicles in fulfillment of their contract with UPS, 
which is a company that was highlighted at the Valley Mobility Summit 
2012, and expressed that this initiative represents 52 jobs and exportable 
product. Mr. McCarty also suggested that work executed by Metro with 
regard to kinetic traction should be given further attention. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and 
may be enacted by one motion.  Prior to the motion to consider any action by the 
Board, any public comments on any of the Consent Calendar items will be heard. 
There will be no separate action unless members of the Board request specific 
items to be removed from the Consent Calendar. 

5. MINUTES — Review November 8, 2012 Board of Directors Minutes.  
Requested Action: Approve Minutes 
On motion of Director Talamantes, seconded by Director Avila, 
and unanimously carried, the minutes of November 8, 2012 
were approved. 

6. MINUTES — Amend the minutes of July 14, 2012 to delete the reference in Item 
6 "…Approval of core Annual Budget 'Budget A' was approved" 
Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones stated that the agenda distributed 72 
hours in advance of the meeting differed from the agenda that was 
distributed on the day of the meeting and therefore recommended that the 
meeting minutes approved on July 12, 2012 be brought back at the next 
SFVCOG meeting for reconsideration. 

Attachment 5 Bates #005



 

San Fernando Valley 3 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

Director Yaroslavsky instructed County Counsel Jill Jones to ensure that 
the correct minutes are reflected in the next SFVCOG agenda. 

On motion of Director Yaroslavsky, seconded by Director Talamantes, and 
unanimously carried, this item was continued to the March 14, 2013 
meeting. 

REGULAR CALENDAR  

The Board of Directors may take action on the following items 

7. FINANCE AND BUDGET 

a. Financial Report — Treasurer, Rachelle Anema, County Auditor-Controller 
Rachelle Anema, Treasurer (Auditor-Controller), referenced figures 
reflected in the Statement of Receipts and Disbursements reports for 
Fiscal Years 2010/11, 2011/12 and the last six months of Fiscal Year 
2012/13. Ms. Anema also stated that financial reports, from the 
Treasurer and Tax Collector’s system, are also included to support 
figures reflected in the Statement of Receipts and Disbursement 
reports. Ms. Anema added that the report does not reflect an entry 
payment for services provided by the Executive Director in 
December, as well as any other outstanding expenses processed 
after the report was generated. Ms. Anema continued by stating that 
her office is taking the lead in making sure the Fiscal Manual is being 
revised; an update will be provided at the next SFVCOG meeting.  

b. Accounting from Valley Mobility Summit 2012 
Rachelle Anema, Treasurer (Auditor-Controller), reported that a 
summary of the Valley Mobility Summit 2012 has been prepared and 
as of January 10, 2013, $43,340 has been deposited, $15,000 has 
been paid in expenses but there is still approximately $6,300 in 
expenses that has yet to be billed. Ms. Anema added that there is still 
approximately $20,000 of pledges that have yet to be collected and 
as of January 10, 2013 the net revenue from the Mobility Summit 
totaled $23,200. Ms. Anema continued by reporting that the current 
contract for Executive services reflects that the Valley Economic 
Alliance is able to seek reimbursement up to $750 per month for 
expenses but some of the Mobility Summit expenses for the month 
of October exceeded that amount and a motion to approve the 
reimbursement has to be approved by the SFVCOG. 

On motion of Director Talamantes, seconded by Director Avila, and 
unanimously carried, reimbursement for expenses acquired at the 
Mobility Summit was approved.  

c. Report of the ad hoc Fiscal Committee 
Director Yaroslavsky introduced this item and provided a brief 
overview of eight recommendations made by the ad hoc Fiscal 
Committee. 

Attachment 5 Bates #006



 

San Fernando Valley 4 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

After discussion, on motion of Director McLean, seconded by 
Director Talamantes, and unanimously carried, the following 
recommendations were approved: 

 The COG should hold a performance evaluation of the services it 
is receiving under the Management Services Agreement at the 
January meeting. This is Item 8A on the Supplemental Agenda. 

 Given the past confusion about the state of the COG’s finances, 
including how quickly checks were being paid and how much 
money the COG had on hand, the COG’s fiscal agent should 
attend each meeting, provide an oral report, and be available to 
answer questions from Directors. 

 The existing COG fiscal manual has a number of ambiguities. For 
example, there is no explicit procurement policy. So, County 
Counsel and the Auditor-Controller, with the cooperation of the 
Executive Director, should be directed to review and update the 
COG’s Fiscal Manual and procurement policy and present it to the 
COG Board for adoption at the COG’s March 2013 meeting. This 
direction is Item 12, on the Agenda. (NOTE: Bob inserted an Item 
into #12 that needs to be amended as part of Item 12, so don’t 
approve it in its entirety). 

 Currently, agendas are often sent out late, multiple versions of 
attachments are sent to different subgroups of the COG, and 
changed documents are handed out the morning of the COG 
meeting. To ensure every member of the COG knows what we’re 
being asked to vote on, and can read substantive documents 
ahead of the meetings, the COG should set a policy that Agendas 
including attachments should be sent out 2 weeks in advance of 
each semi-monthly meeting. 

 Similarly, to avoid future Brown Act violations, County Counsel 
should be instructed to provide Brown Act compliance 
information to the Executive Director and should be instructed to 
work with the Executive Director to ensure that the Brown Act is 
complied with. 

 The COG should immediately initiate the audit mandated by its 
JPA, but never thus far performed. 

 County Counsel should work with the Economic Alliance and the 
Executive Director to ensure that the proposed amendment to the 
Management Services Agreement would comply with: a) the 
Board of Director’s instruction that the increase in compensation 
be made contingent upon the COG having sufficient funds 
available, and b) the Agreement complied with all other aspects of 
the law. 

 The Auditor-Controller should send, and continue to send, 
updated financial records to the Executive Director. 

Attachment 5 Bates #007



 

San Fernando Valley 5 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

 
8. CHAIR'S REPORT — Ara Najarian, Chairman of the Board 

Updates, remarks and recommendations from the Board Chair 
No report was given on this Item. 

9. VOTING POLICY - (Continued from July 12, 2012) Initiate a process to amend 
the Joint Powers Agreement of the SFVCOG to change the voting requirements  
Requested Action: Instruct the Executive Director to circulate a 
proposed amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement to change the 
voting requirements for actions and resolutions to an alternate form. 
On motion of Director Talamantes, seconded by Director Avila, 
and unanimously carried, this item was continued to the   
March 14, 2013 meeting.  

10. MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Contract amendment to the Management 
Services Agreement with the Valley Economic Alliance to increase the amount 
for additional management services being provided by the Alliance and extend 
the term through June 30, 2013.   
Requested Action: Approve amendment of Management Services Agreement. 
and authorize the Treasurer to disburse monthly payments pursuant to the terms 
of the  amended agreement, unless and until further notice is received from the 
Chair or the Board of Directors 
Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones distributed a second draft of the 
proposed amendment to the Management Services Agreement between the 
SFVCOG and the Valley Economic Alliance and advised that this version 
(HOA.942900.3) should be the amendment to vote on since the previous 
version did not reflect needed contingency language.  

On motion of Director Talamantes, seconded by Director Antonovich, and 
unanimously carried, this item was approved. 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — Robert L. Scott 
Report from the Executive Director regarding activities, developments and 
correspondence 
Executive Director Robert L. Scott asked Board members to view the Form 
700 summary, reflecting delegates and alternates, and advise him of any 
changes.  

a. VALLEY MOBILITY SUMMIT 2012 - 2013 Event 
Requested Action: Approve staging the Valley Mobility Summit 2013. Approve 
advancing funds and incurring obligations from the general fund, not to 
exceed projected revenues. Authorize contracting with consultants to assist in 
outreach to sponsors and supporters and to assist with the conduct of the 
event. Establish parameters for contracting. Review outcomes from 2012 and 
recommend early strategies to expand and improve the event.  

Attachment 5 Bates #008



 

San Fernando Valley 6 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

No action was taken on this item. 
b. CAPACITY BUILDING: PHILANTHROPY SUMMIT November 14, 2012 —

Report — Event to cultivate increased philanthropic awareness of the 
region and an increase in per capita share of resources.  
Mr. Scott expressed that the Summit was a success and great 
recognition was given to the SFVCOG and the San Fernando Valley 
Community Foundation. 

c. COMMUNITY FOUNDATION — Ongoing incubation by the San Fernando 
Valley Council of Governments. Need for continued support, participation 
and promotion of San Fernando Valley Community Foundation 
No action was taken on this item. 

d. HIGHER EDUCATION COALITION — Scheduled Symposium on Higher 
Education — TBD. Need for continued support and participation 
Mr. Scott encouraged SFVCOG members to read material provided 
by the Little Hoover Commission.  

12. CONTRACTING, PROCUREMENT POLICY, FISCAL MANUAL - Review 
existing  standards and policies for contracting and subcontracting procurement. 
Requested Action: Treasurer and Counsel to review Fiscal Manual in 
consultation with the Executive Director, and to report back with proposed 
amendments for procurement processes and reimbursement for day to day 
expenses of the COG, to ensure integrity in the process and optimize the results 
for the San Fernando Valley Council of Governments in the context of 
prospective projects, activities and needs, in contracting, subcontracting, 
managing and administering grants and other programs.  Also initiate a realistic 
and reliable audit schedule of the COG's operations. 
Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones reported that her office is currently 
working in conjunction with the Auditor-Controller and Executive Director 
Robert L. Scott in order to make the Fiscal Manual more suitable to the 
SFVCOG needs. Ms. Jones also stated that the manual will reflect 
procedural standards for public entities, including competitive bids for 
contracts and subcontracts and advised that an annual audit will need to 
be conducted in order to be in compliance with State laws for Joint Powers 
Authorities.  

Executive Director Robert L. Scott posed questions about expenses that 
are required to be placed in a bidding process. 

Discussion ensued regarding incidental expenses that need to be included 
in the bidding process and will be described in the Fiscal Manual.  

Treasurer Rachelle Anema reported that the revised Fiscal Manual is 
anticipated to be completed by the next SFVCOG meeting, scheduled for 
March 14, 2013.  

13. TRANSPORTATION TASK FORCE - Jess Talamantes, Chair 

Attachment 5 Bates #009



 

San Fernando Valley 7 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

a. Sepulveda Pass Corridor — Report on special meeting with Metro re: 
Sepulveda Pass Corridor Systems Planning Study. Need for a feasibility 
study of Public Private Partnership and Pre-Development Agreement 
strategies 

Requested Action: Discuss and Adopt a position encouraging Metro to conduct 
studies of opportunities for "Public Private Partnerships" for "Sepulveda Pass 
Corridor Systems."  

Mel Wilson, Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro), expressed 
his gratitude and praised the SFVCOG for the work that has been done 
in the San Fernando Valley. Mr. Wilson reported that the Metro Board of 
Directors has approved a motion to conduct a study of the Sepulveda 
Pass Corridor and the East Valley BRT through a public/private 
partnership and requested that the following two actions be taken by 
the SFVCOG: 

1. Support the Sepulveda Pass Corridor and the East Valley BRT 
study. 

2. Combine the East San Fernando Valley Corridor project and the 
Sepulveda Pass Corridor project together as a single project. 

Mr. Wilson continued by reporting that there is a need for the study and 
alternate ways that will help fund the projects in a more expedited 
manner.  

Discussion among Director Antonovich, Director Yaroslavsky, Chair 
Najarian and Mr. Wilson ensued with regard to whether both requests 
from Mr. Wilson should be included in agenda Item 13d (Metro 2013 Call 
for Projects) or should be approved at today’s meeting. 

Director Antonovich proposed that Item 13a be incorporated into Item 
13d.    

On motion of Director Yaroslavsky, seconded by Director Talamantes, 
and unanimously carried, Item 13a was incorporated into Item 13d and 
Item 13d will be presented to the SFVCOG at a subsequent meeting. 
b. East Valley BRT Bus Rapid Transit options 

No action was taken on this Item. 
c. Mobility Matrix / Intelligent Transportation Systems study project as 

Metro Request for Proposals 
Requested Action: Ratify the SFVCOG's participation in a Metro grant process. 
Authorize the Executive Director to develop the project, respond to any RFP and 
otherwise pursue grant funding from Metro/LAMTA. Authorize the Executive 
Director, working in conjunction with counsel, to establish any necessary 
processes and procedures to participate in the Mobility Matrix / Intelligent 
Transportation Systems study project. Develop a procurement process.  

Attachment 5 Bates #010



 

San Fernando Valley 8 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

 No action was taken on this Item. 

d. Metro 2013 Call for Projects [Continued], projects of regional 
significance for SFVCOG jurisdictions  
Report on Call for Projects Workshop November 5, 2012 at COG Offices 
Members are requested to assist in developing a composite list of 
recommended/requested projects for adoption by the Board of Directors 
— Including commentary from Valley Mobility Summit 
Donald Wilkes, Los Angeles Unified School District, suggested that 
students who utilize public transportation be considered when 
generating the list for projects.  

On motion of Director Antonovich, seconded by Director 
Yaroslavsky and unanimously carried, Mr. Wilkes suggestions will be 
incorporated. 

e. Orange-Gold Line Connector, North Hollywood to Pasadena 
Requested Action: Adopt a position to "support in concept" a 
BRT/LRT public transit connection that will ultimately link the east 
end of the Orange Line BRT with the Gold Line LRT, extending 
access from the west San Fernando Valley to and through the cities 
of Burbank, Glendale, Pasadena and the San Gabriel Valley. 
Continue to monitor, and participate in, the evolving process 

Executive Director Robert L. Scott introduced this Item and 
encouraged SFVCOG members to take a position. 

Director Yaroslavsky suggested this also be placed in the Metro 2013 
Call for Projects list and brought back to the SFVCOG. 

f. Pacific Surfliner - Participation with LOSSAN JPA in strategies relating to 
Senate Bill 1225 (Padilla) Amtrak’s Pacific Surfliner Corridor; a state 
intercity rail corridor being transferred to the LOSSAN Corridor JPA from 
Caltrans 

Requested Action: Authorize the Executive Director to take steps to 
communicate with LOSSAN, to determine opportunities for possible affiliation 
and participation in the process and project; with any financial commitment being 
subject to board approval 

Executive Director Robert L. Scott introduced Item 13f with Item 13g 
and requested that discussions about possible affiliations be 
allowed.   

Director Yaroslavsky instructed Mr. Scott to report back to the 
SFVCOG before any affiliation is finalized. 

On motion of Director Antonovich, seconded by Director Talamantes 
and unanimously carried, Items 13f and 13g were approved. 

g. Coast Rail - Communicate and consider Affiliation with the Coast Rail 
Coordinating Council (housed at the San Luis Obispo Council of 
Governments) to support frequent traditional coastal rail service between 

Attachment 5 Bates #011



 

San Fernando Valley 9 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

Los Angeles and the San Fernando Valley Metrolink stops, north beyond 
San Luis Obispo to San Jose and San Francisco. 
Requested Action: Authorize the Executive Director to take steps to 
communicate with the Coast Rail Coordinating Council; to determine 
opportunities for possible affiliation and participation in the process and 
project; with any financial commitment being subject to board approval 
This item was discussed and approved with Item 13f. 

h. I-5 High Occupancy Vehicle Lanes — Explore timing and funding 
opportunities for the North County I-5 High Occupancy Vehicle lanes 
which run through the Santa Clarita Valley. Metro is currently looking at 
options in accelerating this project so that it can be constructed in 2018 
instead of its scheduled construction date of 2030. One of those options is 
a potential Public Private Partnership. 
Metro, Mark Dierking - Request to make a presentation possibly on the 
January 17, 2013 before the SFVCOG Transportation Task Force.  
Executive Director Robert L. Scott asked to have this Item pulled 
from the agenda. 

By common consent, there being no objection, this Item was taken 
off the agenda. 

14. METRO ROUND 3, "TRANSIT-ORIENTED DISTRICT" PLANNING GRANT 
Update on grant application submitted by SFVCOG 
Requested Action: Begin a solicitation in the anticipation that the SFVCOG will 
receive this and other future grants. Authorize the Executive Director to work with 
counsel and begin to establish an RFQ, RFP or other appropriate process(es) to 
build a list of contractors and consultants 
Executive Director Robert L. Scott introduced this Item and reported that 
Don Sepulveda from Metro was invited to the next SFVCOG meeting. Mr. 
Scott added that results for Metro Round 3 have not been received and a 
letter of support for proposal Part B is pending from the City of Los 
Angeles, Department of City Planning.  

Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones expressed concern about being in 
compliance with grant requirements, considering the lack of planning staff, 
and suggested getting advice from consultants.   

Director Yaroslavsky instructed Mr. Scott to come back to the SFVCOG 
before any Request for Quotation (RFQ), Request for Proposal (RFP) or 
other solicitation is created. 

On motion of Director Antonovich, seconded by Director Talamantes and 
unanimously carried, this Item was approved. 

15. DUES AND DUES ASSESSMENT - (Continued from July 12, 2012) Amend the 
Joint Powers Agreement of the SFVCOG to delegate power to the COG board of 
directors to make future dues determinations 

Attachment 5 Bates #012



 

San Fernando Valley 10 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

Requested Action: Instruct the Executive Director to develop and circulate a 
proposed amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement of the SFVCOG to 
delegate power to the Board of Directors to make future dues determinations 
On motion of Director Yaroslavsky, and by common consent, there being 
no objection, this Item was moved to the March 14, 2013 meeting. 

  CLOSING 

16. FUTURE AGENDAS 
Members are invited to suggest additional items to be brought forward for 
discussion at future SFVCOG Board of Directors meetings. Collaborative 
Initiatives for Discussion 
Director McLean suggested an Item be added to discuss expanded 
weekend services of the Antelope Valley Line providing service from the 
Antelope Valley to Orange County for tourists visiting Disneyland and Six 
Flags Magic Mountain. 

On motion of Director Yaroslavsky, and by common consent, Mr. Scott was 
instructed to place Director McLean’s suggestion in the March 14, 2013 
agenda. 

17. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Members are invited to announce items/activities which may be of general 
interest to the SFVCOG Board of Directors. 
No announcements were made. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 
12:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY  
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

A Joint Powers Authority 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGENDA 

Thursday, January 10, 2013 – 10:00 a.m. 
Valley Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

14410 Sylvan Street, 2nd Floor 
Van Nuys, California 91401 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEMBERS 

Attachment 5 Bates #013



 

San Fernando Valley 11 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday January 10, 2013 

Chair:  Councilmember Ara Najarian, City of Glendale 
Vice-Chair: Councilmember Dennis Zine, 3rd District, City of Los Angeles 

 
Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, 3rd Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 
Supervisor Mike Antonovich, 5th Supervisorial District, County of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Jess Talamantes, City of Burbank 
Councilmember Paul Krekorian, 2nd District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Tom LaBonge, 4th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Paul Koretz, 5th District, City of Los Angeles 

Vacant, 6th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Richard Alarcón, 7th District, City of Los Angeles 

Councilmember Mitchell Englander, 12th District, City of Los Angeles 
Councilmember Jesse Avila, City of San Fernando 

Councilmember Marsha McLean, City of Santa Clarita 
 

AGENDA NO.  CHANGE/ADD 
7d. Resolve to maintain the role of the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller 

in serving as Treasurer for the San Fernando Valley Council of 
Governments until further notice, and to include an amendment 
empowering the Board of Directors to make future designations to that 
effect in Section 9 of the next update of the joint Powers Agreement 

 

On motion of Director Talamantes, seconded by Director Avila, and 
unanimously carried, this item was approved. 

 
 NOTICE OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
8A. Personnel Matters – G.C. Sec. 54957 inter alia: 
 Performance Review: Management Services 
 
Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones introduced the closed session item and 
advised that the performance evaluation of Executive Director Robert L. 
Scott will be reviewed during the closed session. 
 
The SFVCOG recessed to Closed Session at 11:00 a.m. Present were Chair 
Councilmember Ara Najarian, Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, Supervisor 
Michael D. Antonovich, Councilmember Jess Talamantes, Carolyn Ramsay 
for Councilmember Tom LaBonge, Councilmember Marsha McLean and 
Councilmember Jesse Avila. 
 
The COG reconvened the SFVCOG meeting at 11:50 p.m. Present were 
Supervisor Zev Yaroslavsky, Supervisor Michael D. Antonovich, 
Councilmember Jess Talamantes, Carolyn Ramsay for Councilmember 
Tom LaBonge, Councilmember Marsha McLean, Councilmember Jesse 
Avila and John Takhtalian for Councilmember Ara Najarian. 
 
Deputy County Counsel Jill Jones advised that no reportable action was 
taken in Closed Session. 

Attachment 5 Bates #014



San Fernando Valley 1 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY  
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

A Joint Powers Authority 
MINUTES OF THE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING 

Thursday, July 12, 2012 – 10:00 a.m. 
Valley Municipal Building, Council Chambers 

14410 Sylvan Street, 2nd Floor 
Van Nuys, California 91401 

1. CALL TO ORDER — Ara Najarian, Chair  
The meeting was called to order by Chair Najarian at 10:20 am  
 
2. ROLL CALL  
Quorum established (11 members):  Chair Councilmember Najarian, Vice Chair 
Councilmember Zine, Ben Saltsman for Supervisor Yaroslavsky, Jarrod DeGonia for 
Supervisor Antonovich, Councilmember Jess Talamantes, Adrin Nazarian for 
Councilmember Paul Krekorian, Councilmember Tom LaBonge, Jeffrey Ebenstein for 
Councilmember Paul Koretz, Phyllis Winger for Councilmember Mitchell Englander, 
Councilmember Sylvia Ballin, Councilmember Marsha McLean 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
The pledge of allegiance was led by Adrin Nazarian 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Scott Sterling, Museum of the San Fernando Valley, addressed the SFVCOG with an 
invitation to join the Horses Across The Valley project. 
Board Member Tom LaBonge added that Richard Alarcon, Chair for the Arts, Parks, 
Health and Aging Committee for the City of Los Angeles, has been working on initiatives 
related to those proposed by Mr. Sterling and asked that Mr. Sterling contact Mr. 
Alarcon for a possible collaboration. 
Renato Lira addressed the Board on the possibility of new projects in the city of San 
Fernando resulting from the approval of Measure R. 
Chair Najarian ensured Mr. Renato that issues presented to the SFVCOG by 
representatives from the City of San Fernando are encouraged. 
CONSENT CALENDAR  

Attachment 6a Bates #015



San Fernando Valley 2 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

Chair Najarian reported that the SFVCOG received requests to pull item 9 from the 
Consent Calendar. The SFVCOG moved forward with approving items one through 
eight in the Consent Calendar.  
On Motion of Board Member Zine, and by Common Consent, there being no objection, 
this item was approved. 
 
5. MINUTES – Review April 12, 2012 Board of Directors Minutes.  
Requested Action: Approve Minutes  
 
6. CORE ANNUAL BUDGET — Approval of core Annual Budget “Budget A” was 
approved 
 
7. WORK PROGRAM FY 2012-2013 - Updated  
 
8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
Requested Action: Revise the schedule of regular meetings of the Board of Directors 
from quarterly to bi-monthly 

 
9. METRO ROUND 3, “TRANSIT ORIENTED DISTRICT” PLANNING GRANT 
Requested Action: Unified application/response to RFP for planning grant managed 
through the SFC COG and affiliates 
Jenna Hornstock, Metro – County-wide planning, reported that since the SFVCOG 
meeting in March, there has been an expansion to all rail, bus ways and metro link 
stations within Los Angeles County. This initiative allows an area within a quarter mile of 
a rail or bus transit way or a half of mile from a Metro link station in Los Angeles County, 
to be eligible to apply for the grant. Ms. Harnstock also advised that the usage of grant 
funds was prioritized in the following order: 

a. Funding proposals that will result in eliminating regulatory constraints to Transit 
Oriented Development (TOD) projects 
b. Funding proposals that include planning or collaborate work leading to regulatory 
changes 

Ms. Hornstock added that Council of Governments (COG), Joint Powers Authorities 
(JPA) and municipalities are eligible to apply for the funds, but it is important to gain the 
support of affected jurisdictions included within the application. 
Paul Moeller, Smart Building Consultants, shared an idea that includes a feasibility 
study of train and bus stops to determine the possibility of locations next to these transit 
corridors as areas where retail and housing units can be built.  

Attachment 6a Bates #016



San Fernando Valley 3 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

Robert L. Scott, Executive Director, reported that as much as $2.5 million of the $10 
million in the grant program is anticipated for the San Fernando Valley and added that 
this will be collaborative approach, between all jurisdictions in San Fernando Valley, to 
pursue the funds. 
On Motion of Board Member Talamantes, seconded by Board Member McLean, this 
item was approved. 
 
REGULAR CALENDAR 

 
10. ANNUAL BUDGET – Approval of alternative Annual Budget “Budget B” 
Requested Action: Approve Supplemental Annual Budget “Budget B” 
Executive Director Scott reported that the $60,000 budgeted to operate the SFVCOG, 
with each jurisdiction paying $10,000, was not adequate on an ongoing basis and 
reported that $100,000 appears to be more reasonable. Mr. Scott added that $40,000 
will be targeted from the Mobility Summit and from grants. The Valley Economic 
Alliance (VEA) financed the SFCOG through June and “Budget A” is now underfunded. 
Mr. Scott also added that he will reach out to Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG) for a grant. 
Executive Director Scott answered questions posed by Chair Najarian with regard to the 
proposed $40,000 expected from the Mobility Summit and increased expenditures 
reflected in “Budget B”. 
Discussion among Board Member McLean, Chair Najarian, and Executive Director 
Scott ensued with regard to the contribution by each jurisdiction for dues.   
Board Member Talamantes stated that it would be beneficial to compare cost factors 
from other COGs. 
Vice-Chair Zine reported that the intent of unanimity voting in the SFCOG was to make 
sure all jurisdictions are taken into consideration. 
Discussion ensued among Chair Najarian, Vice-Chair Zine and Executive Director 
Scott, with regard to the proposed increase in salary for the Executive Director of 
SFVCOG and the comparison of salaries and duties of Executive Directors for other 
COGs. Chair Najarian stated that the intent of the motion was to "backfill" the funding no 
longer being provided by the VEA, and to adjust the rate being paid.  
Board Member LaBonge gave a directive to have Chair Najarian, Vice-Chair Zine and a 
third Board Member meet with Hasan Ikhrata, Executive Director of SCAG, to discuss 
possible funding from SCAG. 
Ben Saltsman clarified that the revised Executive Director’s formal contract was not 
before the Board at this time. Chair Najarian recommended that the revised formal 
contract should be made retroactive to the beginning of the fiscal year, July 1, 2012. 
County Counsel reported that there will be a need to modify the Executive Director’s 
contract. 

Attachment 6a Bates #017



San Fernando Valley 4 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

On Motion of Board Member LaBonge, seconded by Vice-Chair Zine, this item—2012-
2013 Annual Budget B was approved at $100,000. 
 
11. ANNUAL ELECTIONS – Chair and Vice Chair to serve FY 2012-2013 
On Motion of Vice-Chair Zine, seconded by Board Member LaBonge, unanimously 
carried, the Committee re-elected Board Member Najarian as Chair of the SFVCOG for 
Fiscal Year 2012-2013. 
 
12. CHAIR’S REPORT 
Updates, remarks and recommendations from the Chair of the Board 
Chair Najarian pronounced Vice-Chair Zine as the Guardian of the Valley for the 
summer quarter. 
 

13. CHAIR’S APPOINTMENTS – Report opportunities and selections 
 a. Metro Technical Advisory Committee Alternate – Nomination 
 b. Metro Street & Freeways, Subcommittee Member – Nomination 
 c. Metro Streets & Freeway Subcommittee Member – Nomination (Alternate) 
 d. Leagues of Cities, Los Angeles – Board of Directors – Report 
Chair Najarian reported that if anyone has interest in being appointed or re-appointed to 
please contact his office through Executive Director Scott.  
 
14. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Report from the Executive Director regarding activities, developments and 
correspondence 
Requested Action: Discuss, agendize or receive and file. 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, reported the following: 

 Organizing The Valley Mobility Summit as reflected great cooperation with the 
Santa Clarita Chamber, the Santa Clarita Valley Industry Association and the 
Delegation in the city of Santa Clarita. It will take place at the Hyatt Regency 
Valencia on Monday October 22, 2012 at 9:00 a.m.  

 Would like to have as many Members of the SFCOG as possible at the Funders 
Summit. The event is mostly to appeal to the Southern California Philanthropic 
community and the Summit is part of the effort to bring resources to the region. 

Chair Najarian directed Executive Director Scott to send the Board reminders of the 
event. 

Attachment 6a Bates #018



San Fernando Valley 5 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

Executive Director Scott was authorized by the Board to advance reserve funds needed 
for the Mobility Summit.   
 
15. “MEASURE R” EXTENSION FORUM – The Valley Perspective 
Requested Action: Discuss, consider Position Paper addressing the issue from the 
perspective of the San Fernando and Santa Clarita Valley region 
Chair Najarian shared an overview of the forum and reported that it was a successful 
event. 
Jarrod DeGonia for Board Member Antonovich reported that in the original Measure R 
funding, the San Fernando Valley with 40% to 48% of the population of the City of Los 
Angeles, would receive approximately one-third of the funding and it remains the same 
in the extension of Measure R.  
Ben Saltsman for Board Member Yaroslavsky reported that the event was a great turn-
out and with a frank discussion. Mr. Saltsman added that Measure R has help produce 
the extension of the Orange Line to Chatsworth and it is already producing revenue that 
will help improve highways, transit, operations and maintenance. 
Vice-Chair Zine expressed concern with the need to stimulate the usage of public 
transportation and create corridors that will alleviate the commute for the working class. 
Board Member LaBonge express the need to look back where mistakes were done with 
transit infrastructures and learn from them. Mr. LaBonge also added that the $4 billion 
transit improvement that subway brought has help North Hollywood tremendously. 
Board Member McLean shared Vice-Chair Zine’s view about increasing the usage of 
public transportation. Board Member McLean expressed concern about 3% of Measure 
R funding, for 82% of the entire Measure R, being based on 2004 figures for population. 
Board Member Talamantes stated that the Measure R Extension Forum was very 
educational and engaging for the public. 
Board Member Balin asked that the City of San Fernando be considered, as support for 
Measure R continues.   
Jerard Wright addressed the Board with regard to alternatives to help ease traffic 
congestions. 
Denny Zane, Executive Director of Move LA, address the Board with regard to the 
possibility of a robust transit system with the help offered by Measure R. 
Renato Lira addressed the Board with regard to Measure R and the positive affects it 
may have for the city of San Fernando. 
 
16. VALLEY MOBILITY MATRIX – Graphic and Narrative Template – a Unified Transit 
and Transportation Vision for the region 

Attachment 6a Bates #019



San Fernando Valley 6 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

Robert Scott, Executive Director, reported that a technical advisory committee meeting 
will be scheduled in the next couple of weeks and the Valley Mobility Matrix is expected 
to be presented on October 22, 2012.  
 
17. ORANGE-GOLD LINE CONNECTION – Public transportation link between the San 
Fernando and San Gabriel Valleys 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, reported of a request to create a position document 
working with all cities that are interested in an Orange-Gold Line Connection. 
Chair Najarian expressed that he is in favor of drafting a position document and 
reported that the cities of Glendale, Burbank and Pasadena have self-funded a study 
that describes the engineering and ridership issues that would be presented with an 
Orange-Gold Line connection. 
Jano Baghdanian, Glendale Transportation Administrator, reported that Metro will be 
looking at the segments in the orange-gold line connection and feels that the SFCOG’s 
participation is critical. 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, was directed to draft a document expressing the 
position of the SFVCOG with regard to the Orange-Gold Line connection and present it 
to the Board for review at the next SFVCOG meeting. 
 
18. AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN – Briefing from SCAQMD 
Philip M. Fine, PHD., Planning and Rules Manager for SCAQMD, shared an overview of 
SCAQMD’s responsibilities and a slide presentation of work that is being planned by 
SCAQMD and other agencies to meet affective goals in air quality. Mr. Fine also 
reported of initiatives, taken by SCAQMD, to help find funding for more jobs that are 
environmentally conscientious.     
Jarrod DeGonia for Board Member Antonovich, asked if the Social Economic Report of 
the plan from SCAQMD takes in consideration California Air Resources Board’s (CARB) 
AB 32 requirements. 
Mr. Fine explained that although SCAQMD is working together with CARB to minimize 
economic impacts, the Social Economic Report will only include measures proposed by 
the SCAQMD. 
After discussion, by Common Consent and there being no objection, this item was 
received and filed. 
 
19. INCREASED BIKE RACK CAPACITY ON BUSES – Position Paper 
Jarrod DeGonia asked that this item be tabled to the next meeting, in two months, to 
allow further analyzes and advised that legislation to increase bike racks needs more 
time before a position is taken by the SFVCOG. 
Chair Najarian requested a status report of legislature for this item prior to the SFVCOG 
taking a position. 

Attachment 6a Bates #020



San Fernando Valley 7 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

Executive Director Robert Scott was directed to work with Jarrod DeGonia in preparing 
a draft position paper for review, by the SFVCOG, at the next meeting.  
 
20. COUNCILS OF GOVERNMENTS - METRO AREA – Best practices, programming 
and resource development 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, reported that operations for other COGs will be 
reviewed and presented to the SFVCOG at a future meeting.  
 

 21. MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT – Changes to Management Services 
Agreement FY 2012-2013 – Funding Alternatives 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, reported that a Management Services Agreement that 
conforms to the supplemental annual budget, adopted in item 10, will be created.  
The Board directed the Robert Scott to prepare a draft of the agreement and present it 
to the Board at a later meeting.  
 
22. DUES AND DUES ASSESSMENT 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, suggested that this item be tabled to the next meeting. 
The SFVCOG directed Executive Director Robert Scott to present the Dues and Dues 
Assessment issues to the Steering Committee, for review, prior to reporting to the 
SFVCOG.  
 
23. VOTING MAJORITY 
Jarrod DeGonia recommended that a weighted vote system or motions being adopted 
by the majority of each jurisdiction, be used as a method less than unanimity. 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, agrees that a unanimity system is not the best method 
to use to move forward. 
Board Member McLean asked that voting alternatives be included in the best practices 
for other COGs discussion. 
Chair Najarian encourage Board Members to present ideas, with regard to other ways 
of voting, at the next meeting. 
 
24. TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE REPORT – Jess Talamantes 
a. Board Member Talamantes reported of the groundbreaking for the Bob Hope Airport 
Regional Intermodal Transportation Center (RITC) and advised of the approximately 
two years of construction time to conduct the project.   

Attachment 6a Bates #021



San Fernando Valley 8 Board of Directors Meeting 
Council of Governments  Minutes - Thursday July 12, 2012 

b. Robert Scott, Executive Director, stated that the Metro 2013 Call for Projects is 
something that the SFVCOG needs to be engaged and should be part of the Mobility 
Matrix. 
 
25. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
There were none. 
 
26. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Robert Scott, Executive Director, reminded everyone that item 8 was approved and the 
meetings will be conducted bi-monthly.  
 
27. FUTURE MEETINGS  
Chair Najarian directed Robert Scott to remind all Board Member of future meetings. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 12:26 p.m.  

Attachment 6a Bates #022



 1 

Adopted 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
OPERATING BUDGET - Fiscal Year 2012-2013 - Rev 1  
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 

 

 

 

 

REVENUES REVENUES EXPENDITURES BALANCE             

Member Dues 60,000  60,000 

Revenues from Grants, Events, Sponsorships 40,000  100,000 

EXPENDITURES 

Wages & Benefits 

Executive Director, Management Services Contract  75,000 25,000 

General Operations 

Office Lease  0 25,000 

Office Expense, Postage, Stationery, etc.  2,000 23,000 

Printing  5,000 18,000 

Computer Supplies  500 17,500 

Telephone & Communications  0 17,500 

Audit Fees, Fund  2,500 15,000 

Travel, Airfare & Accommodations  800 14,200 

Travel Per Diem  0 14,200 

Parking and Auto  250 13,950 

Meeting/Event Support, Logistics, Refreshment and Expenses  5,000 8,950 

Membership Dues  1,200 7,750 

League of Cities  0 7,750 

Data and Data Services  0 7,750 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses  7,750 0 

Totals and Year End Balance $  100,000 $ 92,250 $   0 

  

 

 

Attachment 6b Bates #023



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial Report 
Not available at the time of distribution 
To be handed out at the meeting 

Attachment 7
Bates #024



Attachment 9a Bates #025



Attachment 9a Bates #026



Council of
Governments

Population Core Revenue 
/ Dues & Intergov

Core
Expenditures

Mgmt Services Agt
or Public Salary

Other Staff
Supplemental
/Grant Budget

Supplemental 
Expenditures

San Fernando 
Valley COG

          2,000,000                60,000                60,000                    48,000  0                60,000                20,000 

Westside Cities 
2011

             700,000              120,215              120,215                    90,000                  6,000                18,000                18,000 

San Gabriel 
Valley COG

          2,000,000              703,096              685,533 
 428,033

+(207K Grnts) 
 5-6 in MSA

+ 86,500 
          1,130,000           1,129,000 

Gateway Cities 
COG

          2,000,000              800,000              800,000 
 207,397

Salary +6K auto 
 5+ Consultants 7,300,000 7,300,000

South Bay Cities 
COG

             900,000              260,000              593,000                  342,000 
 13+

Consultants 
             260,000  1,000,000+ 

Council of
Governments

Dues
City of LA Dues
LA County Dues

Net Assets
/ Surplus

Member / City
Representation

Vote Required
for Action

Year
Founded

San Fernando 
Valley COG

6 Members
at $10K

LA City $10K 
LA Co $10K

 Est 30K 
4 Ind Cities

7 LA City 2 LA Co
Unanimous 2010

Westside Cities 
COG

6 Members
at $20K

LA City $20K
LA Co $20K

             112,032 
1 Vote 

Per Member
Majority c. 1995

San Gabriel 
Valley COG

35 Members
at Avg $20K

LA City n/a
LA Co $90K

             645,033 
1 Vote

Per Member
Majority c. 1994

Gateway Cities 
COG

31 Members
LA City n/a

LA Co $88K
1 Vote 

Per Member
Majority 1996

South Bay Cities 
COG

17 Members
at  $3500-$30K

LA City $29K
LA Co $30K

             300,000 
1 Vote

Per Member
Majority 1994

Councils of Governments in the Los Angeles Region
Organizational and Operating Characteristics Comparisons

January 2, 2013

Attachment 9b
Bates #027



Attachment 9c
Bates #028



Attachment 9c
Bates #029



Attachment 9c
Bates #030



Attachment 9c
Bates #031



Attachment 9c
Bates #032



Attachment 9c
Bates #033



Attachment 9c
Bates #034



Attachment 9c
Bates #035



Attachment 9c
Bates #036



Attachment 9c
Bates #037



Attachment 9c
Bates #038



Attachment 9c
Bates #039



Attachment 9c
Bates #040



Attachment 9c
Bates #041



Attachment 9c
Bates #042



Attachment 9c
Bates #043



Attachment 9c
Bates #044



Attachment 9c
Bates #045



HOA.829693.3 

 

 

 

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

 

FISCAL MANUAL 

Approved October 13, 2011 
 

Attachment 10
Bates #046



 

San Fernando Valley 2 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

 

FISCAL MANUAL 
 

Introduction 

The San Fernando Valley Council of Governments (SFVCOG) Fiscal Manual is a 
resource guide of fiscal policies, procedures, and internal controls to safeguard and 
manage the authority's assets.  The Executive Director and the management team will 
use the Fiscal Manual as a day-to-day guide to manage and control fiscal operations, 
and meet their responsibilities to manage funds and other assets within the SFVCOG. 

This Fiscal Manual will be updated and maintained by the Executive Director, 
SFVCOG in accordance with procedures detailed within the Fiscal Manual. 

 

 

Attachment 10
Bates #047



 

San Fernando Valley 3 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Table of Contents 

Chapter 1 – Governing Regulations and Guidelines 

1.10 Governing Regulations and Guidelines………………………………3 

1.1.1 Introduction and Summary 

1.1.2 County Fiscal Manual 

1.1.3 Maintenance and Updates to the Authority Fiscal Manual 

Chapter 2 – Payroll 

2.1.0  Personnel and Payroll……………………………………………………4 

2.1.1 Decentralization of Personnel and Payroll 

Chapter 3 – Procurement and Contracting 

3.1.0 Procurement and Contracting………………………………………….5 

3.1.1 Procurement and Contracting 

3.1.2 Expenditure Approval Authorizations 

3.1.3 Expenditure Authorization Limits 

Chapter 4 – Grant Management 

4.1.0 Grant Management………………………………………………………6 

4.1.1 Introduction 

4.1.2 Policies and Procedures 

4.1.3 Reporting Procedures 

Chapter 5 – Capital Assets Management 

5.1.0  Capital Assets Management……………………………………………7 

5.1.1 Introduction 

5.1.2 Responsibility for Policies and Procedures 

Chapter 6 – Travel and Training Policy 

6.1.0 Travel and Training Policy………………………………………………8 

6.1.1 Policy 

6.1.2 Approval Procedures 

Attachment 10
Bates #048



 

San Fernando Valley 4 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 1 – Governing Regulations and 
Guidelines 

 

1.1.0 Governing Regulations and Guidelines 

1.1.1 Introduction and Summary 

The San Fernando Valley Council of Governments (SFVCOG) Joint Powers 
Agreement (JPA Agreement) was approved in May 2010 and provides overall guidance 
on administrative matters.   

Section 9 of the JPA Agreement states that "The Treasurer of one of the 
Members shall serve as Treasurer of the SFVCOG for a term of three (3) years. Upon 
expiration or earlier termination of the term, the Treasurer of the Member whose Board 
Representative then serves as the Chair of the Board shall serve as the Treasurer for 
the SFVCOG. Should that person have just served as Treasurer, or otherwise not be 
available, then the Treasurer of the Member whose Board Representative then serves 
as Vice Chair shall serve as the Treasurer."   

Currently, the Los Angeles County Treasurer and Tax Collector serves as the 
treasurer of the Authority and the County Auditor-Controller acts as the Fiscal Agent.  
The treasurer is responsible for the deposit, custody, safekeeping and disbursement of 
all the monies of the Authority.  The auditor-controller is responsible for monitoring all 
financial transactions, processing payments for all Authority expenditures, contracting 
with a certified public accountant for the annual audit of accounts and records as 
prescribed by the State Controller for special districts (report shall be filed within six 
months after end of fiscal year under audit),  keep copies of supporting documentations 
for expenditures provided by the Authority, and submit on a quarterly basis a cash basis 
report to the Governing Board of the Authority which shows all financial transactions of 
the Authority. 

1.1.2  Los Angeles County Fiscal Manual 

The Los Angeles County Fiscal Manual is the primary resource guide for all fiscal 
matters in the County.  Therefore, based on the direct connection between the Authority 
and the County in fiscal matters cited above; the County Fiscal Manual provides the 
overall  governing regulations and guidelines for all Authority fiscal matters, 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

1.1.3 Maintenance and Updates to the Authority Fiscal Manual 

The Executive Director of the SFVCOG shall be responsible for maintaining and 
updating the SFVCOG Fiscal Manual. All updates, including but not limited to signature 
and expenditure authority rules, will be submitted to  the SFVCOG Board of Directors 
for approval. 

  

Attachment 10
Bates #049



 

San Fernando Valley 5 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 2 — Payroll and Personnel 

2.1.0 Payroll and Personnel 

2.1.1 Decentralization of Payroll and Personnel 

To the extent that SFVCOG does not directly and explicitly employ any particular 
employee(s), Member staff assigned to the SFVCOG will not be considered employees 
of the SFVCOG, but instead such Member staff will remain employees of their member 
department/city/agency.  All payroll and personnel responsibilities will therefore be 
decentralized and will remain the responsibility of the employees’ member agencies. 

2.1.2 Authority of the Executive Director 

While the SFVCOG will not technically employ the employees, the Executive 
Director will provide day-to-day functional supervision of the employees assigned to the 
SFVCOG.  The Executive Director may also, at their discretion, review specific 
administrative items, such as time records and invoices from any agencies seeking 
reimbursement for employee service, to ensure the accurate and appropriate 
accounting of SFVCOG expenditures. 

2.1.3 Independent Contractors 

The SFVCOG may directly retain independent contractors to perform services as 
contract employees.  County procurement procedures and the County Fiscal Manual 
will govern the fiscal aspects, solicitation, contracting, and payment of these 
independent contractors. 

 
  

Attachment 10
Bates #050



 

San Fernando Valley 6 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 3 — Procurement and Contracting 

3.1.0 Procurement and Contracting 

3.1.1 Procurement and Contracting Procedures 

Overall SFVCOG procurement and contracting policies and procedures will be 
governed by County procurement policies and procedures. Exceptions may be made for 
specific items (such as expenditure authority limitations outlined below) as approved by 
the SFVCOG Board of Directors. 

The County Board of Supervisors has adopted certain policies and programs  
that were adopted by the County Board of Supervisors to be applied to County 
purchase orders and service contracts.  These policies are specifically excluded when 
they do not directly relate to the SFVCOG’s procurement of goods and services, and 
are not applicable to SFVCOG procurement and contracting activities. 

3.1.2 Expenditure Approval Authorization 

The SFVCOG Board of Directors is responsible for establishing appropriate limits 
of expenditure approval authorization.     

All invoices related to payment of the Executive Director or reimbursement to the 
Executive Director for approved expenditures, must be approved by the Chair of the 
Board of Directors. 

3.1.3 Expenditure Authorizations Limits 

As approved by the Authority’s Board of Directors on  October 13, 2011, the 
expenditure authorization limits are as follows: 

a. The Executive Director is authorized to approve all purchases, 
invoices, and expenditures within the amounts included in the 
Authority’s adopted budget. 

b. All expenditures above the budgeted amounts must be approved by 
the Board of Directors. 

  

Attachment 10
Bates #051



 

San Fernando Valley 7 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 4 — Grant Management 

4.1.0 Grant Management 

4.1.1  Introduction 

Due to importance of federal and State grants to the development of the 
SFVCOG, the Board and the Executive Director will adhere to and pay particular 
attention to the availability, processes, and timelines for grant applications, approvals, 
and payments. 

4.1.2  Policies and Procedures 

The Director shall ensure that grants are aggressively pursued and rigorously 
managed to ensure that all available grant funds are allocated to the Authority and 
expended in a timely manner. 

4.1.3 Reporting Procedures 

The Executive Director shall report to the Board at least quarterly on the status of 
all grant funding. 

  

Attachment 10
Bates #052



 

San Fernando Valley 8 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 5 — Capital Assets Management 

5.1.0 Capital Assets Management 

5.1.1 Introduction 

Currently, the SFVCOG has no capital assets.  However, if capital assets are 
acquired, it is imperative that the Board of Directors and Executive Director pay 
particular attention to the safeguarding, custody, replacement, documentation and 
accountability for all capital assets. 

5.1.2 Responsibility for Policies and Procedures 

The Executive Director shall be responsible for establishing capital asset policies 
and procedures that are consistent with the County Fiscal Manual and sound 
management practices. Internal controls will focus on budgetary control, accurate 
inventory and tagging of all capital assets, and clear accountability and responsibility for 
SFVCOG capital assets, including their replacement. 

  

Attachment 10
Bates #053



 

San Fernando Valley 9 Fiscal Manual 
Council of Governments  October 2011 
   

Chapter 6 — Travel and Training Policy 

6.1.0  Travel and Training Policy 

6.1.1 Policy 

The Director shall ensure that personnel assigned to the SFVCOG follow all 
County travel and training regulations to ensure the effective control and cost 
management of these expenses.   

6.1.2 Approval Procedures 

All out-of-County travel and training shall receive prior approval of the Chair.  The 
Chair, within the guidelines and expenditure limits established by the County, shall 
approve all claims for reimbursement of travel and training expenditures.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Attachment 10
Bates #054



 

1 
 

San Fernando Valley  
Council of Governments 

Status and Activity Profile - Partial 
Draft In Progress: February 14, 2013 Detailed descriptions to follow 
 
Adoptions 
Appointments 

Benchmarks 
Fiscal Committee 

History 
Logistics 

Pending or Tabled 

Benchmarks - Major Events 

Establishment of SCAG SFV Subregion - January 2012 

Establishment of METRO SFV Subregion - April 2012 

Budget Adoption - Needs Clarification - July 2012 

Mobility Summit 2011 - Relevance& Revenue - November 2011 

Mobility Summit 2012 - Relevance& Revenue - October 2012 

Mobility summit 2013 - Relevance& Revenue - October 2013 

Philanthropy Summit 2012 - Capacity Building - November 2012 

Measure J Forum - Relevance - October 2012 

Higher Education Coalition Established - College Presidents 2011 
 College Presidents Working Group 
 Building Regional Capacity at the College Level 
 Economic Development and Workforce Enhancement 

Joint Powers Agreement and First Meeting SFV COG - 2010 

Establishment of Statistical District, City of Los Angeles - 2002 

Establishment of Statistical District, Census County Division - 2002 

Establishment of Statistical District, State of California - 2002 

Formation Committee - San Fernando Valley Council of Governments - 2002 

Establish the Mulholland Institute 2000 

Establish The Valley Economic Alliance - Northridge Earthquake - 1994 

  

Attachment 11a
Bates #055



 

2 
 

Adoptions 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget - 

Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Budget - October 2011 

Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Budget - August 2010 

Establish the County Auditor-Controller as the Fiscal Agent - August 2010 
 Establish a Fund 
 Make Payments and Pay Invoices as approved by the COG 
 Provide Quarterly Reports of All Accounting of All Funds 
 Prepare Pro Forma Financial Statements and Arrange for an Annual Audit 

Map of Jurisdictions GIS Overlays - July 2011 

Work Program - October 2011 

Conflict of Interest Code - August 2010 

Fiscal Manual - Initial Version - October 2010 

Establish a Fund - August 2010 

Management Services Agreement- April 2011 

Mobility Matrix Initiative - July 2011 

Support and Facilitation for LAEDC County Economic Development Strategy 

Valley Fair - CA51st Agricultural Dist - Relocation Facilitation 

Transportation Task Force - Established July 2011 

Steering Committee - Established - October 2011 
 To assist the chair in Agenda Development and Issue Refinement 
 Informal with one representative from each member - less than a quorum 

Technical Advisory Committee - Convened - July 2011 
 To assist the executive director in Agenda Development and Issue Refinement 
 Informal with one representative from each member - less than a quorum 

Logistics and Communication 

Website with audio video archive sfvcog.org - Established and Maintained 

Newsletter Established to improve communications and inform stakeholders 

Internal Research Capacity to Supplement COG Initiatives 

Internal Issue Development Capacity to Cultivate Relevant Issues 
 Literature Review  
 Monitor News Resources 
 Monitor Governmental and Civic Activities and Initiatives 

Attachment 11a
Bates #056



 

3 
 

 Develop Relevant Position Proposals 
 Pursue Regional Equity for the 2 Million Regional Residents 

Pending or Tabled 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget - Requires Clarification 
Amending Joint Powers Agreement - July 2011 

 Voting Unanimity - 100% agreement of 100% of 26 board members and 
alternates not realistic - "consensus" is the goal 

 Dues and assessments startup was fixed at $10K regardless of population or 
number of board seats 

Fiscal Manual - Ongoing - April 2011 
 Procurement Projects and Subcontracts 
 Procurement Operational and Incidental 
 Funds Processing 
 Approval Thresholds 
 Transactional Firewalls - Deferred Powers 
 Protocols for Communications and Reporting 
 General Operational Checking Account and Project Sub-Accounts 

Mobility Summit Budgeting 

Core Funding 
Alliance Supplement  until Self-sustaining- Terminated May 2012 
Executive Director Absorbed the Loss/Delay 

Appointments 

League of Cities, Board of Directors 
League of Cities Legislative Committee 
Metro Technical Advisory Committee 
Metro TAC Alternate 
Metro Streets & Freeways Committee 

Metro S&F Alternate 
SCAG Energy & Environment 
SCAG Transportation 
SCAG Comm, Econ & Human Dev

Funding, Grants, Projects & Partners 

Interstate-5 Corridor Study - SCAG - Completed 2010 $100K 

Transit Oriented Districts, Round 3 - Metro - Submitted 
 Metrolink Station Area Land Use Plans - Five Stations in SFV 
 Metrolink and Orange Line Stations - Data, Policy and Regulatory Guidelines 
 Est. $2M+ 

Transportation Needs Assessment & Strategy- Metro - Development 
 Funded Study and Report (est. $500K) 
 Phase I Mobility Matrix for Release at Summit 2013 

  

Attachment 11a
Bates #057



 

4 
 

PARTNERSHIPS 

Metro 
Metro NCC 
SCAG 
SCAG Regional Council 
SCAG Transportation Committee 
SCAG Comm Econ & Human Dev 
SCAG Energy & Environment 
AQMD 
FAST 
Mobility 21 
OLDA/ERTA 
I-5 Gateway 
San Gabriel Valley COG 
Gateway Cities COG 
South Bay Cities COG 

Westside Cities COG 
Western Riverside COG 
Las Virgenes-Malibu COG 
Arroyo-Verdugo Subregion  
City of Palmdale 
City of Calabasas 
City of LaCañada Flintridge 
LOSSAN Rail Corridor 
Coast Rail Corridor 
California High Speed Rail 
Xpress West High Speed Rail 
VIA 
VICA 
The Valley Economic Alliance 

SPONSORSHIPS 

Aecom 
Auto Club 
AVS Consulting 
Bob Hope Airport 
CH2MHill 
Consensus Inc 
Valley Economic Alliance 
FAST 
Ferrovial Agroman 
Gateway Coalition 
Kiewit 
Latham Watkins 
City of Los Angeles 
County of Los Angeles 
Los Angeles DOT 
Metro LACMTA 
Metrolink 
Mission Valley Bank 
Morgner Construction 

NBC Universal 
Newhall Land 
OLDA/ERTA 
Port of Los Angeles 
Psomas 
SCAQMD 
So Cal Edison 
So Cal Gas 
SRAR Realtors 
Squar Milner 
Thomas Properties 
Union Bank 
Union Pacific 
UPS 
Urban Innovations 
URS 
US Bank 
Wells Fargo 
Westfield

 

Attachment 11a
Bates #058



Page 1 
 

 
Executive Director's annotations are in green italics. 

 
The stated purpose of the ad hoc fiscal committee was to provide 
recommendations to develop protocols for procurement, purchasing and 
subcontracting, and to revise or replace the Fiscal Manual to make it relevant 
and useful to the day-to-day business of the COG. This is consistent with a 
number of previous requests by the Executive Director (ED).  

 
On December 17th the Fiscal Working Group, consisting of Chair Najarian's and 
Director LaBonge's Offices, as well as staff from the Auditor-Controller and County 
Counsel's office (Bob Scott was invited but did not attend) convened to discuss the 
fiscal policies of the COG, and make recommendations as to how to get the COG's 
fiscal and administrative house in order.  
 

The meeting notice went out after the executive director's morning message 
retrieval and the telephone conference took place before the afternoon retrieval. 
Given the content of this document, the input of the ED should have been 
included. 

 
This work was meant to be a precondition for approving the new Management Services 
Agreement that provides higher compensation to the Economic Alliance. 
 

This incorrectly conflates two issues and suggests that the ED has full 
responsibility for the within matters. In any case, the ED should have been 
provided with prior notice and opportunity to respond to the inferences.  

 
A summary of the recommendations developed by that group were then sent by County 
Counsel to Bob Scott and members of the Steering Committee. 
 

There is no record of these being provided to the ED 
 
- The recommendations of the Fiscal Working Group are: 
 
1 - The COG should hold a performance evaluation of the services it is receiving under 
the Management Services Agreement at the January meeting. This is Item SA on the  
Supplemental Agenda. 
 

While this may be useful, it exceeds the assigned scope of the Fiscal Committee 
and in any case should be subject to notice and a reasonable process. 

 

Attachment 11b
Bates #059



Page 2 
 

2 - Given the past confusion about the state of the COG's finances, including how 
quickly checks were being paid and how much money the COG had on hand, the 
COG's fiscal agent should attend each meeting, provide an oral report, and be available 
to answer questions from Directors. 
 

The repeated reference to "past confusion" creates an inaccurate inference. 
Since inception only one account has existed for the COG's general fund. This 
has been managed by the County Auditor-Controller's office—as Fiscal Agent—
by the authority of the COG's Treasurer, Mark J. Saladino, Treasurer for the 
County of Los Angeles. 

The COG has no bank account and no checkbook.   

The executive director has no checks or check-writing authority.  

Regular financial statements are generated and circulated by the Auditor-
Controller. 

The executive director can only authorize payments within the constraints of the 
board's approved budget, and only when properly documented and accepted by 
the Auditor-Controller. All payments or reimbursements to the executive director 
must be approved by the chair. This is the system established by the board. 

Bills for membership dues are generated by the Auditor-Controller and checks 
are paid directly to the Auditor-Controller. The executive director sees neither. 
Interest accrues on the general account and is posted directly. Staff is informed 
only by monthly or quarterly financial reports. This is the system established by 
the board. Under the current system, staff cannot provide precise on-the-spot 
balances, as would be if the case if the COG had a conventional checking 
account.  

3 - The existing COG fiscal manual has a number of ambiguities. For example, there is 
no explicit procurement policy. So, County Counsel and the Auditor-Controller, with the 
cooperation of the Executive Director, should be directed to review and update the 
COG's fiscal manual and procurement policy and present it to the COG Board for 
adoption at the COG's March 2013 meeting. This direction is Item 12 on the Agenda. 
(NOTE: Bob inserted an item into #12 that needs to be amended as part of Item 
12 so don't approve it in its entirety). 
 

The Fiscal Policy Manual is silent on virtually all operational issues, and having 
been cribbed from LA-RICS, is woefully inadequate to provide guidance for an 
agency at the scale and scope of the COG. At the July 2011 meeting, county 
counsel "…noted that certain inconsistencies exist between county and city 
policies." stating that  "These need to be reconciled" and suggested "…more time 
be provided to review the manual." These matters still have not been resolved. 
The ED has continuously supported a relevant set of fiscal policies. 

 
4 - Currently, agendas are often sent out late, multiple versions of attachments are sent 
to different subgroups of the COG, and changed documents are handed out the 
morning of the COG meeting. To ensure every member of the COG knows what we're 

Attachment 11b
Bates #060



Page 3 
 

being asked to vote on, and can read substantive documents ahead of the meetings, 
the COG should set a policy that Agendas including attachments should be sent out 2 
weeks in advance of each semi-monthly meeting. 
 

The statement made here is incorrect. Agendas have always been posted more 
than 72 hours in advance, as required under the Brown act, and the exact same 
agenda has always been distributed simultaneously to the board. The suggestion 
that "multiple versions of attachments" are sent "to different subgroups" makes 
no sense. Supplemental attachments may occasionally have been sent as follow-
ups or handouts, but this is rare and normally unavoidable. In any case all board 
members always receive the same materials. 

 
5 - Similarly, to avoid future Brown Act violations, County Counsel should be instructed 
to provide Brown Act compliance information to the Executive Director and should be 
instructed to work with the Executive Director to ensure that the Brown Act is complied 
with. 
 

This unfortunate wording infers that  there have been past Brown Act violations. 
This is not true, existing law already covers this issue, and the ED and counsel 
have conferred multiple times to stay up to date on the Brown Act. 

 
6 - The COG should immediately initiate the audit mandated by its JPA, but never thus 
far performed. 
 

There is no disagreement on this issue, but once again, as stated,  the language 
could be misunderstood as to who and why this has not yet occurred. 

 
7 - County Counsel should work with the Economic Alliance and the Executive Director 
to ensure that the proposed amendment to the Management Services Agreement would 
comply with: a) the Board of Director's instruction that the increase in compensation be 
made contingent upon the COG having sufficient funds available, and b) the Agreement 
complied with all other aspects of the law. 
 

Full agreement with this, but uncertain as to the need for section (b). 
 
 8 - The Auditor-Controller should send, and continue to send, updated financial records 
to the Executive Director. 
 

Full agreement with this. 
 
I MOVE THAT: All of these recommendations be adopted by the Board of Directors, 
and the appropriate staff be directed to implement each of these recommendations 
immediately EXCEPT for the recommendations involving the performance evaluation 
and the update of the fiscal manual because those recommendations are already listed 
separately on today's agenda as Items 8A and 12, respectively. 

Attachment 11b
Bates #061



Fiscal Working Group Motion 
 
Refining the Fiscal Manual - Policies for Procurement and Purchasing 
 
[Offered to Replace Item 7c of the January 10, 2013 Agenda] 
 
1 - The COG's Treasurer should attend each meeting, provide an oral report including 
most recent account balances, and send regular financial records and reports to the 
Executive Director. 
 
2 - General Counsel, the Treasurer, and the Executive Director, are directed to meet 
and develop recommendations to refine the COG's Fiscal Manual, procedures and 
procurement policies making them consistent with the scale, scope and needs of the 
COG. This shall be returned to the Board for approval soon as reasonably possible.  
 
3 - The COG operational policies should provide that Agendas including attachments 
(when available) should be sent out two weeks in advance of each regular meeting; that 
packet pages be Bates numbered for consistency and convenience, and that electronic 
versions include bookmarks to attachments. 
 
4 - The COG should immediately initiate regular audits as provided for in the Joint 
Powers Agreement. 
 
5 - Any management services arrangement, providing for compensation over and above 
base dues funding, are to be made contingent upon verifiable funding, either by existing 
cash, fixed revenues such as additional dues, or by actual revenues received from COG 
activities. 
 
I MOVE THAT: The foregoing recommendations be adopted by the Board of Directors. 

Attachment 11c
Bates #062



One Gateway Plaza 
Los Angeles, CA 90012-2952 

213.922 .2000 Tel 
metro. net 

PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING COMMITTEE 
FEBUARARY 20, 2013 

SUBJECT: FY 2012 TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT GRANT PROGRAM 

ACTION: APPROVE FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS AND REVISE THE 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

RECOMMENDATION 

A. Award $9,443,997 in Transit Oriented Development (TOO) Grants to the 13 
recommended project sponsors, as shown in Attachment A; 

B. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute Grant Agreements for the 
funds; and 

C. Amend the TOO Round 3 Grant Program Guidelines to allow 36 months for project 
completion. 

ISSUE 

In June 2012, at the Board's direction, a request for applications was issued for Round 
3 of the TOO Planning Grant Program dollars with a maximum funding of $10 million. 
We received 15 applications totaling $17,719,222 in funds. All applications have been 
evaluated by an internal panel and we have made recommendations for funding for 13 
projects totaling $9,443, 997. We are requesting Board approval of the funding and 
authorization for the CEO to execute Grant Agreements with successful applicants. 
Further, we are asking the Board to revise the TOO Planning Grant Program 
Guidelines, from 24 months to 36 months as shown on page 13 in Attachment B. 

DISCUSSION 

The Program provides funds to encourage cities along transit corridors to make the 
regulatory changes necessary to foster infill and TOO. TODs increase accessibility and 
utilization of public transportation, which leads to transit system improvement. In 
addition, the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) recently proposed guidelines for 
New Starts and Small Starts projects provides competitive advantage to applicants 
which encourage transit supportive land use plans, policies and other economic 
development indicators along transit corridors. 

15 

Attachment 12
Bates #063



Eligible activities for funding include, but are not limited to, amendments to local general 
plans and adoption or amendments of specific plans, Transit Village Districts, overlay 
zones, parking, height, zoning ordinances and similar measures. 

Rounds 2 and 3 expanded eligible activities to include developing specific planning 
tools to consider in adopting regulatory changes that promote TOO, assisting cities to 
collaborate on planning for new stations and/or to promote TOO-friendly regulatory 
change around existing or proposed stations, and developing model ordinances or 
other regulatory frameworks. Any California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) actions 
necessary for these regulatory changes are also eligible activities under the Program. 

Round 3 

At its February 23, 2012 meeting, the Board approved Item 31 (Villaraigosa, O'Connor, 
Wilson and Huizar) making Round 3 available to Metro's systemwide rail and transit 
corridors, and Los Angeles County Metrolink Stations, in place of six specific transit 
corridors and rail lines that had previously been directed by the Board. 

The Round 3 funding is available to all Los Angeles County local jurisdictions with 
regulatory land use oversight and COGs and JPAs that represent those Los Angeles 
County local jurisdictions with regulatory land use oversight, within Y.. mile of Metro's rail 
and transitway stations and within% mile of Metrolink stations. Any COG or JPA 
applying for funds is required to demonstrate support from the municipality (ies) it is 
representing with the grant-funded activities. Also at the February 2012 meeting, the 
Board directed (Ridley-Thomas) prioritization of funding awards with first priority given 
to applicants proposing regulatory land use changes and second priority to applicants 
proposing pre-regulatory studies. 

We conducted outreach to eligible jurisdictions, COGs and JPAs through letters, phone 
calls and direct meetings. During this outreach, we heard from eligible municipalities 
that the proximity in funding rounds creates capacity issues, and that a longer 
timeframe for project completion would make the grant funding feasible to the broadest 
number of participants. In addition, some recommended applicants for this round have 
requested extra time to identify staffing needs in order to complete grant-funded 
activities within their budgetary constraints. TOO Rounds 1 and 2 have the option of an 
administrative extension, if time extensions are needed. For this reason, we 
recommend modifying the Round 3 program guidelines to provide 36 rather than 24 
months for project completion. 

Evaluation 

The Round 3 applications were evaluated by an internal panel. The panel divided the 
applications into first and second priority categories and set a funding threshold of 70 
out of 100 possible points. The applications evaluation included reductions in funding 
awards and/or eliminations of tasks that fell outside the purview of the grant program. 
Eliminated tasks included studies of funding mechanisms that support both TOO 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 2 

Attachment 12
Bates #064



economic development as well as infrastructure capacity studies. In response to the 
number of applicants seeking funds to prepare summaries of TOO funding 
mechanisms, we are preparing a brief on these funding mechanisms based on a review 
of several current studies on the topic, and will provide this brief to all TOO Program 
participants and other interested municipalities. We believe substantial research has 
been conducted on this topic, and such summaries need not be replicated. 

In the first priority category of regulatory land use documents, the panel is 
recommending funding for the 12 projects submitted in this category. In the second 
priority category of pre-regulatory studies, the panel is recommending funding for one of 
the three applications submitted in this category. The panel determined that the three 
applications for which funding is not recommended did not provide a significant nexus 
between the proposed work and the subsequent regulatory changes that could lead to 
increased ridership. 

The total recommended funding is $9,443,997. This is less than the $10,000,000 
available. The evaluation panel determined that this funding amount is the most 
appropriate to achieve the Program goals, which is to support land use changes that 
promote TOO and therefore increase ridership and access to transit. 

DETERMINATION OF SAFETY IMPACT 

There is no negative impact to the safety of our employees and /or patrons. The TOO 
policies supported by the Program could improve safety around stations. The principles 
of TOO include better pedestrian and bicycle access to stations as well as clearer 
access to stations which can reduce accidents. Further, TOO tends to encourage 
walking and bicycling, both of which improve the health of patrons. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The FY13 budget includes $1,500,000 in the Subsidies to Others Budget, Cost Center 
0441 Project 465560, Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Round 3. Since 
this is a multi-year project, it will be the responsibility of the Cost Center Manager and 
the Executive Director, Countywide Planning to budget expenditures in future years. 

Impact to Budget 

The source of funds for these activities is Measure R 2% System Improvement Funds. 
These funds are eligible for rail capital improvement costs. 

Other sources of funds were considered. However, these funds meet the criteria for 
these types of projects and sufficient dollars exist to cover these expenditures. Should 
other eligible funding sources become available, they may be used in place of the 
identified funds. 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 3 

Attachment 12
Bates #065



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

The Board may choose not to approve the funding awards and related actions as 
recommended. We do not recommend this alternative. The Program as designed 
furthers the Board objectives with regard to land use policy, increased ridership and 
systemwide improvements. Further, many local planning agencies do not have the 
resources to accelerate the regulatory changes necessary to promote infill and TOO 
projects along transit corridors and thus take full advantage of the transit access being 
made available. Finally, the recommended grant awards meet the program's objectives 
and have been carefully evaluated to ensure the end result would achieve the 
programmatic goals of increased ridership. 

The Board may choose not to extend the timing for completion of grant-funded 
activities, in which case the applicants will be required to demonstrate the ability to 
complete the grant-funded activities within 24 months. We do not recommend this 
alternative as providing for realistic timelines creates higher quality results and a better 
opportunity for successful completion of grant-funded projects. Additionally, this 
recommended change is in response to feedback received during Round 3 outreach. 

NEXT STEPS 

With Board approval, we will initiate and execute Grant Agreements with the Round 3 
awardees and will also provide the program applicants with a summary of TOO funding 
mechanisms. We will initiate a study of similar grant funding programs to determine the 
most effective approach for future rounds. Now that three rounds of the TOO Grant 
Program have been considered, we believe it would be valuable to evaluate the body of 
applications received and the program component likely to best achieve the program 
goals. We will report back to the Board on any recommended changes to the program 
guidelines should the Board authorize subsequent rounds. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. TOO Planning Grant Round 3 Summary and Funding Recommendations 
B. Revised Round 3 Program Guidelines 

Prepared by: Calvin Hollis, Executive Officer, (213) 922-7319 
Jenna Hornstock, Deputy Executive Officer, (213) 922-7437 
Rufina Juarez, Transportation Planning Manager, (213) 922-7 405 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page4 

Attachment 12
Bates #066



~ Ma~~FAIA 
Executive Director Countywide Planning 

Arthur T. Leahy 
Chief Executive Officer 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page5 

Attachment 12
Bates #067



2012 TOO Planning Grant Round 3 
Summary and Funding 
Recommendation 

Applicant 
Requested 

Project Description 
Funding 

City of San $282,392 TOO Overlay Zone 
Fernando for area immediately 

south of Metrolink 
station. 

City of $289,670 TOO Specific Plan for 
Baldwin Park Downtown Baldwin 

Park. 
City of El $400,400 Transit District 
Monte Specific Plan for El 

Monte's Main Street 
area just south of 
Metrolink Station. 

City of $319,000 Focused General 
Huntington Plan Update for the 
Park City of Huntington 

Park. 

City of $875,175 Transit Oriented 
Lynwood District Plan for area 

around Long Beach 
Station and Alameda 
St/lmperial Highway 
Bus Corridor. 

City of Long $183,500 TOO Pedestrian 
Beach Master Plan along the 

Metro Blue Line 
corridor in Long 
Beach. 

Los Angeles $6,449,359 Amend community 
Department plans and 
of City ordinances. 
Planning Modify, expand, 
(DCP) and/or create parking 

districts and overlay 
zones. Create 
streetscape and 
specific plans. 

Los Angeles $675,876 TOD Specific Plan 
County around Metro 
Department Blue/Green Line 
of Regional Willowbrook Station. 
Planning 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program 

ATTACHMENT A 

Ave Recommended 
Stations 

Score Funding 
82.3 $282,392 Metrolink: 

Sylmar/San 
Fernando Station 

82.0 $289,670 Metrolink Station: 
Baldwin Park 

80.8 $400,400 Metrolink Station: 
El Monte 

80.0 $319,000 Two possible 
stations as part of 
the West Santa 
Ana Corridor 

79.8 $800,000 Metro Green Line 
Station: Long 
Beach 

78.5 $183,500 Eight Metro Blue 
Line Stations 

78.3 $4,480,000 Three Westside 
Subway Stations, 
four Metro 
Regional 
Connector 
Stations and five 
Orange Line 
Stations 

78.3 $546,035 Metro Blue/Green 
Line Station: 
Willowbrook 

Page 6 

Attachment 12
Bates #068



- ---- ---- ---------

City of Azusa $653,000 TOO Master Plan and 77.8 $653,000 Metro Gold Line 
General Phase II 
Plan/Development extension: 
Code update for Alameda Avenue 
areas around and Citrus Avenue 
Alameda Avenue and Stations 
Citrus Avenue 
Stations. 

City of $250,000 Transit Village 77.8 $250,000 Metro Eastside 
Monterey Specific Plan for area Transit Corridor 
Park around Garfield Phase 2 Gold Line 

Avenue Station. Extension Station: 
Garfield Avenue 

City of $650,000 TOO Overlay Zone 73.0 $400,000 Metrolink Station: 
Palmdale for area around the Palmdale 

Palmdale 
Transportation Center 
and the Palmdale 
Regional Airport. 

City of $641 ,000 South Glendale 71.5 $250,000 Metrolink Station: 
Glendale Community Plan EIR Glendale 

and a Multi-Modal 
Transportation Model. 

Los Angeles $1,063,600 Streetscape Plan for 70.0 $590,000 Metro 
World the Century Corridor Crenshaw/LAX 
Airports TOO. Line Station: 
(LAWA) and Aviation/Century 
Los Angeles 
Department 
of City 
Planning 
(DCP) 
Orangeline $2,945,000 Preparation of an 44.3 $0 Three Metrolink 
Development adoption ready, Stations and eight 
Authority comprehensive and West Santa Ana 
(OLDA) coordinated strategy Branch Corridor 

for TOO for the OLDA Stations 
transit corridor. 

San $2,041,250 TOO data, policy, and 43.0 $0 Seventeen Metro 
Fernando regulatory guidelines Orange Line 
Valley that can be adopted Stations, 
Council of by municipalities in eight Metrolink 
Government the San Fernando Stations, and one 
(SFVCOG) and Santa Clarita Shared Orange 

Valleys. TOO Station Line and Metrolink 
Area Plans for five Station. 
Metrolink stations in 
the San Fernando 
Valley. 

TOTAL $17,719,222 $9,443,997 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 7 

Attachment 12
Bates #069



ATTACHMENT B 

METRO 

Transit Oriented Development 

Planning Grant Program Guidelines 
Round 3 

6/29/2012 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 8 

Attachment 12
Bates #070



I. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE 

The Transit Oriented Development ("TOO") Planning Grant Program ("Program") 
provides Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority ("Metro") 
funds to encourage local governments to develop and adopt land use regulations 
that promote sustainable, transit-oriented design principles. TOO projects take 
advantage of proximity and access to public transit through appropriate density, 
reduced reliance upon private automobiles, and enhanced walkability. Such 
development may increase the accessibility and utilization of public 
transportation. This program will provide funds to local governments, Joint 
Powers Authorities ("JPAs") that represent local governments, and/or Councils 
Of Governments ("COGs") to adapt their existing general plans, specific plans, 
zoning, and other ordinances to encourage such sustainable development forms 
or to develop model ordinances, planning tools, and/or recommendations that 
will lead to local regulatory changes in support of TOO. Grant funding for Round 
3 of the Program is available to cities, the County of Los Angeles, JPAs, and/or 
COGs that: (1) have, or represent cities that have, Metrolink stations in Los 
Angeles County; (2) are along any of Metro's existing or proposed rail lines or 
bus transitways. As in the first and second rounds, eligible cities, JPAs, and 
COGs may use grant funding to develop specific regulatory documents that can 
be adopted by the member governing bodies, such as: 

• New or amended specific plans; 
• New or amended ordinances; 
• New or amended overlay zones; 
• New or amended general plans; 
• Transit Village Development Districts; 
• Environmental studies required to support the new or amended 

regulatory documents. 

Round 3 of the TOO Planning grant may be used by applicants to complete 
planning efforts that: 

• Identify opportunities for regulatory changes that promote TOO; 
• Develop specific planning tools for member cities to consider in adopting 

regulatory changes that promote TOO; 
• Assist member cities to collaborate on planning for the new stations 

and/or to promote TOO friendly regulatory change around existing or 
proposed stations; 

• Develop model ordinances or other regulatory frameworks. 

II. PROGRAM OBJECTIVES 

The primary objectives of the Program are to provide funding to: 

• Increase access to transit by assisting local governments to accelerate 
the adoption of TOO regulatory frameworks; 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 9 

Attachment 12
Bates #071



• Improve the transit network and increase utilization of public transit by 
reducing the number of modes of transportation necessary to access 
regional and local transit lines; 

• Further the reduction in greenhouse gases through encouraging in-fill 
development along transit corridors and transit use; 

• Support and implement sustainable development principles. 

Ill. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 

Local Governments, Los Angeles County, JPAs, and/or COGs representing 
communities with land use regulatory jurisdiction: 

• Within 'Y2 mile of Metrolink Stations in Los Angeles County 
• Within %mile of the existing, planned, or proposed Metro rail transit 

stations or bus transitway stations. 

JPAs or COGs that apply MUST demonstrate support of the proposed grant 
activities from all targeted local governments. Support can be demonstrated by a 
letter or resolution from the local government. 

IV. FUNDING PRIORITIES 

a. First priority will be for funding proposals that will result in eliminating 
regulatory constraints to TOO projects and developing the regulatory 
documents described in Section I above. Such regulatory changes will 
result in conditions that encourage development near transit stations, 
provide for appropriate density given the immediate access to transit, 
reduce dependency on the private automobile and provide for strong 
pedestrian and bicycle connections between development sites and transit. 
While adoption of a Transit Village Development District [Government Code 
65460) is only one method of achieving the regulatory changes desired 
under this grant program, proposals may seek to emulate major portions of 
the objectives stated in Government Code 65460. 

b. Second priority will be given to funding proposals that include planning at or 
near station locations that may be a precursor to regulatory change, 
including but not limited to, traffic modeling, density studies and financial 
feasibility of various development forms. Funding of such projects will only 
be considered if available funds remain after qualified first priority projects 
are funded. 

V. SCORING: The following provides guidance in the scoring of the 
applications. Each section of the application contains an indication of the 
maximum points that may be awarded. 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 10 

Attachment 12
Bates #072



Section 1A- Proposed Regulatory Documents and/or Planning Study: 
(a) If the applicant is proposing to adopt or amend a regulatory document, this 

section should list each of the regulatory documents that will require 
revision to allow TOO projects to go forward and describe the new 
regulatory documents, if appropriate. This may include a community's 
general plan, zoning ordinances, parking codes, specific plans, Transit 
Village District documents, etc. 

(b) If the applicant is proposing development of a model ordinance or other pre
regulatory documents, this section should discuss the objective(s) of the 
effort, the targeted community(ies), and some of the anticipated outcomes, 
for example: description of appropriate TOO guidelines for the targeted 
communities; identification of specific opportunities for TOO; 
recommendation of regulatory documents to adopt and/or amend; 
development of general planning principles for communities to consider in 
moving forward with TOO-friendly regulatory changes, etc. (Up to 25 points) 

Section 1 B - Community and Policy Maker Support: This section should 
identify all of the impacted communities and provide evidence that there exists 
community stakeholder and policy maker support for the types of regulatory 
changes and/or studies being proposed. This could be evidenced by prior 
actions implementing similar changes elsewhere in the community, specific 
direction by the impacted city councils and mayors, letters of support, etc. This 
section applies to all applicants, though COGs and JPAs are required to 
demonstrate support from the targeted communities. (Up to 5 points) 

Section 2A - Regulatory Constraints: This section should identify those 
specific regulatory constraints and/or general land use challenges that the 
program is meant to address. This could include: outdated parking requirements, 
height or density restrictions, lack of bicycle and pedestrian access and 
utilization incentives, etc.; a lack of cohesive vision as to how to plan 
collaboratively for TOO around new and/or proposed stations; and a lack of 
clarity as to appropriate TOO principles given the nature of the impacted 
communities. The description should be comprehensive and subject to 
regulatory relief. (Up to 15 points) 

Section 28 - Impact of Proposed Regulatory Changes: A strong application 
will carefully describe how the regulatory changes will directly mitigate the 
constraints previously identified or offer a clear description of how the proposed 
planning efforts will lead to development, and likely adoption, of regulatory 
changes that support appropriate TOO. (Up to 15 points) 

Section 3- Public Participation: This section should demonstrate that the 
applicant has thought through the public participation and outreach program 
necessary to bring the planning studies and/or regulatory changes forward, has 
the support of the targeted local government and/or communities, and has 
considered the impact of the outreach/participation program on the project 
delivery schedule. (Up to 5 points) 

Section 4 - Opportunity Sites: The strongest applications will be able to link the 
changes to the regulatory environment and/or the proposed planning 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 11 

Attachment 12
Bates #073



recommendations with the near term potential for implementing neighborhood
appropriate TOO development principles. The availability of suitable sites, 
particularly if controlled by the applicant, will be one measure of near term 
implementation. (Up to 5 points) 

Section SA - Project Management Scope of Work: This section should clearly 
describe all the work to be undertaken to effect the studies and/or changes 
proposed leading to and including any required action of the legislative body. 
The work program should be comprehensive, with clearly stated realistic 
milestones and deliverables by which progress can be gauged. Responsibilities 
between staff and consultants, if any, should be identified. (Up to 20 points) 

Section 58- Project Schedule and Budget: In this section of the application, a 
narrative description of the schedule should be provided, and the schedule 
should demonstrate that the model ordinances or other planning tools can be 
completed, and/or that the regulatory changes can be completed and brought 
forward for legislative policymaker action, within the 24 month grant period. Any 
innovative approaches to the schedule that will expedite the program should also 
be described in this section. Any local match should be described, including its 
availability. Strong applications will have presented a realistic and highly cost 
efficient schedule that maximizes the impact of the grant funds requested. 
(Up to 10 points) 

VI. ELIGIBLE COSTS 

a. Applicants will develop and submit a budget as part of the application. 
Funds awarded will not exceed the budget submitted and may be less if the 
key objectives can be achieved at lower costs. Any cost overruns shall be 
the responsibility of the applicant. 

b. Both third party consulting costs and internal staff costs for staff directly 
providing services with respect to the project will be eligible for funding. 
Such eligible costs shall not include overtime costs. 

c. Costs associated with community outreach and meeting CEQA 
requirements are eligible costs. 

VII. NON-ELIGIBLE COSTS 

a. Costs such as equipment, furniture, vehicles, office leases or space cost 
allocations, or similar costs. 

b. Applicant staff overtime costs, mileage reimbursements, and use of pool 
cars. 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 12 

Attachment 12
Bates #074



VIII. GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE CONDITIONS 

a. Duration of Grant Projects. Projects' schedules must demonstrate that the 
projects can be completed, including related actions by the governing body 
(if any), within 24 36 months of award. 

b. Governing Body Authorization. Completed TOO Planning Grant applications 
must include authorization and approval of the grant submittal and 
acceptance of award by the governing body, if required, within three months 
of notification of award. 

c. Grant Agreement. Each awarded applicant must execute a Grant 
Agreement with Metro. The Agreement will include the statement of work, 
including planning objectives to be achieved, the financial plan reflecting 
grant amount and any local match, if applicable, and a schedule of 
milestones and deliverables. The schedule and milestones must reflect that 
the project will be completed within 24 months from the date of award. 

d. Funding Disbursements. Funding will be disbursed on a quarterly basis 
subject to satisfactory compliance with the expenditure plan and milestone 
schedule as demonstrated in a quarterly report supported by a detailed 
invoice showing the staff and hours billed to the project, any consultant 
hours, etc. An amount equal to 5% of each invoice will be retained until final 
completion of the project and audits. In addition, final scheduled payment 
will be withheld until the project is complete and approved by Metro and all 
audit requirements have been satisfied. All quarterly reports will be due on 
the last day of the months of February, May, August, and November. 

e. Audits. All grant program funding is subject to Metro audit. The findings of 
the audit are final. 

FY 2012 Transit Oriented Development Grant Program Page 13 

Attachment 12
Bates #075


	001_Agenda_SFVCOG_2013.03.14
	005_Minutes_2013.01.10_Draft
	006a_Minutes_2012.07.12
	006b_Budget 2012-2013 Rev Jul 2012 Final
	007_Financial_Report_Placeholder
	009a_Staff_Report_2012.03.14_Voting
	009b_COG_Comps
	Sheet1

	009c_SFV_COG_JPA_Conformed_Agreement
	010_Fiscal_Manual_2011.10.13
	011a_Activity_Profile_2013.03.01
	011b_Response_to_Report_and_Motion
	011c_Proposed_Substitute_Directive
	012_Metro_TOD3_Grant_Decision



